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WLLIAM E. KOVACI C
CGener al Counse
AéTt” «AY2 Trade Commi ssi on

Trial Counsel:

BRI NLEY H. W LLI AMS

BRENDA W DOUBRAVA
GERALD C. ZEMAN
AéTt” «AY2 Trade Conmmi ssion
Eat on Center—Suite 200

1111 Superior Avenue

Cl evel and, Chio 44114-2507
Phone (216) 263-3414

Fax (216) 263-3426

Local Counsel:

BARBARA Y. K. CHUN (CA Bar No. 186907)
AéTt” «AY2 Trade Commi ssi on

10877 Wl shire Blvd. —Suite 700

Los Angeles, California 90024

Phone (310) 824-4312

Fax (310) 824-4380

Attorneys for Plaintiff

IN THE UNI TED STATES DI STRI CT COURT
FOR THE CENTRAL DI STRI CT OF CALI FORNI A

FEDERAL TRADE COWM SSI ON,

Case No. 00-10293 DDP (CTx)

Plaintiff,

V. Judge Dean D. Pregerson

PACI FI C OFFI CE SYSTEMS, | NC.,
a corporation, and

Magi strate Judge Carol yn Turchin

AMENDED COWVPLAI NT
FOR | NJUNCTI VE AND
OTHER EQUI TABLE RELI EF

SUZETTE OPPENHEI M
individually and as an
of ficer of the corporation,
and

LESLI E OPPENHEI M
individually and as an
enpl oyee and nanager of
t he corporation,

Def endant s.
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Plaintiff, the AéT* " «A%Trade Conmi ssi on (“Commi ssion”), by
its undersigned attorneys, alleges:

1. This is an action under Sections 13(b) and 19 of the
Aéqr” «AvsTr ade Conmi ssion Act (“FTC Act”), 15 U.S.C. 8§88 53(b)
and 57b, and the Tel emarketing and Consuner Fraud and Abuse
Prevention Act (“Tel emarketing Act”), 15 U.S.C. §8 6101 et seq.,
to secure prelimnary and permanent injunctive relief,
resci ssion of contracts, restitution, disgorgenment, and other
equitable relief for defendants’ deceptive acts or practices
inviolation of Section 5(a) of the FTC Act, 15 U.S.C. § 45(a),
and the Commssion’s Trade Regulation Rule entitled
“Tel emarketing Sales Rule,” 16 C.F. R Part 310, in connection

with the sale of nondurable office supplies.

JURI SDI CT1 ON AND VENUE
2. This Court has jurisdiction over this matter pursuant
to 15 U.S.C. 88 45(a), 53(b), 57b, 6102(c) and 6105(b), and 28
U S. C. 88 1331, 1337(a) and 1345.
3. Venue in the United States District Court for the
Central District of California is proper under 15 U S C

8§ 53(b), and 28 U.S.C. 88 1391(b) and (c).

PLAI NTI FF
4, Plaintiff AéYt” «A¥% Trade Commi ssion i s an i ndependent

agency of the United States CGovernnment created by statute.
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15 U S.C. 88 41-58. The Conm ssion enforces Section 5(a) of
the FTC Act, 15 U S.C. § 45(a), which prohibits unfair or
deceptive acts or practices in or affecting conmerce. The
Commi ssion also enforces the Telemarketing Sales Rule,
16 CF.R Part 310, which prohibits deceptive or abusive
tel emarketing practices. The Conm ssion may initiate federal
district court proceedings by its own attorneys to enjoin
viol ations of the FTC Act and the Tel emarketing Sal es Rul e and
to secure such equitable relief as may be appropriate in each
case, including restitution for injured consuners. 15 U.S.C.

8§ 53(b), 57b and 6105(b).

DEFENDANTS

5. Def endant Pacific Ofice Systens, Inc. (“Pacific”) is
a California corporation with its offices and principal place
of business |located at 22222 Shernman Way, Suite 203, Canoga
Park, California 91303. Def endant Pacific transacts or has
transacted business in the Central District of California.

6. Def endant Suzette Oppenheim is the owner and an
officer of Pacific. At all tinmes material to this Conplaint,
acting alone or in concert with others, she has fornul ated,
directed, controlled, or participatedin the acts and practices
set forth in this Conplaint. Def endant Suzette Oppenheim
resides and transacts business in the Central D strict of

California.
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7. Def endant Lesli e Oppenhei mi s an enpl oyee and nmanager
of Pacific. At all tinmes material to this Conplaint, acting
alone or in concert with others, he has fornul ated, directed,
controlled, or participated in the acts and practices set forth
in this Conplaint. Def endant Leslie Qppenheim resides and

transacts business in the Central District of California.

COMVERCE
8. At all tinmes material hereto, defendants have been
engaged in the business of offering for sale and selling,
t hrough tel emarketers, nondurable office supplies, including
phot ocopi er toner, in or affecting commerce, as “conmerce” is

defined in Section 4 of the FTC Act, 15 U.S.C. § 44.

DEFENDANTS BUSI NESS ACTI VI TI ES

9. Since at l|east 1996, and continuing thereafter,
def endants have engaged in a plan, programor canpaign to sel
nondur abl e office supplies, including photocopier toner, via
interstate tel ephone calls to consumers throughout the United
St at es.

10. Defendants, directly or t hr ough sal es
representatives, have contacted various businesses and ot her
organi zations (hereinafter “consuners”) by tel ephone, and in
numerous instances have represented, expressly or by

inplication, that they are, or are connected with, either the
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consuner’s regular supplier of photocopier toner or the
phot ocopi er manufacturer. In nunerous instances, defendants’
sal es representatives state that the price of toner is about to
substantially increase, but that defendants will continue to
supply toner to the consuner at the old price.

11. Before making the telephone call in which they
m srepresent thenselves as the consuner’s regul ar supplier or
t he phot ocopi er manufacturer, defendants, directly or through
their sales representatives, often first tel ephone consuners to
obt ai n t he make and nodel of their photocopiers and t he nane of
t he enpl oyee responsi ble for the photocopier.

12. In both phone calls, defendants fail to identify
thenmselves or to pronptly, and clearly and conspicuously
di scl ose that the purpose of the call is to sell toner

13. Using the information obtained in the first phone
call, defendants in the subsequent phone call tell the
consuner’s enpl oyee that the price of toner for the consuner’s
particular brand and nodel of photocopier 1is about to
substantially increase. Defendants then state that they wl|
continue to ship toner to the consuner at the old price. The
use of make and nodel information and the reference to the old
price convi nce nost consuners’ enpl oyees that they are speaking
with their regular toner suppliers. The consuner’s enpl oyee
bel i eves that he or she is sinply being advised that, although

a general price increase is going to occur, the consumer wl|
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continue to obtain toner fromtheir regular supplier at the
price they have paid in the past.

14. In nunerous instances, consuners have permtted
defendants to ship toner to them believing that defendants’
sales representatives were associated with the consuners’
regul ar suppliers of toner and that the price of the toner
ordered would be the sane as that charged by their regul ar
suppliers in the recent past. Mst consuners do not believe
t he purpose of defendants’ calls is to solicit new orders for
toner from a conpany with which the consuner has had no
previ ous deal i ngs.

15. Defendants follow up the tel ephone calls by causing
toner to be shipped to the consuner. Def endants send the
consuner an invoice shortly after the toner is shipped. Oten
the first shipnent of toner is quickly foll owed by one or nore
additional shipnents of toner that the consuner has never
agreed to receive. Defendants charge consuners substantially
hi gher prices for toner than what consuners have paid their

regul ar suppliers for toner in the recent past.

VI OLATI ONS OF SECTION 5 OF THE FTC ACT
COUNT |
16. In nunerous instances, in connection with the sale,
offering for sale, or distribution of nondurable office

suppl i es, i ncluding photocopier toner, def endants have
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represented, expressly or by inplication, through, inter alia,
tel ephone calls, that defendants are the consuner’s regul ar
supplier or are associated wth the manufacturer of the
consuner’ s phot ocopi er.

17. In truth and in fact, defendants are not the
consuner’s reqular supplier and are not associated with the
manuf act urer of the consuner’s photocopier.

18. Therefore, the representations set forth in
Par agraph 15 are fal se and m sl eadi ng and constitute deceptive
acts or practices in violation of Section 5(a) of the FTC Act,

15 U.S.C. § 45(a).

COUNT ||

19. In nunmerous instances, in connection with the sale,
offering for sale, or distribution of nondurable office
suppl i es, i ncluding photocopier toner, def endants have
represented, expressly or by inplication, through, inter alia,
t el ephone calls, that defendants will charge the consuner the
sane price the consunmer has been payi ng for photocopier toner.

20. In truth and in fact, defendants do not charge the
consuner the same price as the consuner has been paying for
phot ocopi er t oner. Def endants charge the consuner
substantially nore than the consuner has been paying for

phot ocopi er toner.
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21. Therefore, therepresentations set forth in Paragraph
18 are false and m sleading and constitute deceptive acts or
practices in violation of Section 5(a) of the FTC Act,

15 U.S.C. § 45(a).

COUNT 111

22. I n nunerous instances, in connection with the sale,
offering for sale, or distribution of nondurable office
suppl i es, i ncluding photocopier toner, def endants have
represented, expressly or by inplication, through, inter alia,
tel ephone calls, letters, invoices, packing slips, or shipnent
of office supplies, that consuners ordered the office supplies
that were shipped and/or billed to them by def endants.

23. In truth and in fact, consuners did not order the
office supplies that were shipped and/or billed to them by
def endant s.

24. Therefore, therepresentations set forth in Paragraph
21 are false and m sl eading and constitute deceptive acts or
practices in violation of Section 5(a) of the FTC Act,

15 U.S.C. § 45(a).

VI CLATI ONS OF THE TELEMARKETI NG SALES RULE
25. In the Telemarketing Act, 15 U S.C. § 6101 et seq.,
Congress directed the Comm ssion to prescribe rules prohibiting

deceptive and abusive telemarketing acts or practices. On
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August 16, 1995, the Conmm ssion pronul gated the Tel emarketing
Sales Rule, 16 CF. R Part 310, with a Statenent of Basis and
Purpose, 60 Fed. Reg. 43842 (August 23, 1995). The
Tel emarketing Sal es Rul e becanme effective Decenber 31, 1995,
and since then has remained in full force and effect.
26. Tel ephone cal |l s between a tel emarketer and a busi ness
that involve the retail sale of nondurable office supplies are
subj ect to the Tel emarketing Sal es Rul e’ s prohibitions agai nst
deceptive and abusive telemarketing acts or practices.
16 CF.R 8 310.6(g). In its Statenent of Basis and Purpose
for the Tel emarketing Sales Rule, the Comm ssion stated:
[T]he Comm ssion’s enforcenment experi ence
agai nst deceptive tel emarketers indicates that
of fice and cl eaning supplies have been by far
the nost significant busi ness-t o- busi ness
probl em area: such telemarketing falls within
the Commssion’s definition of deceptive
tel emarketing acts or practices.

60 Fed. Reg. 43842, 43861 (Aug. 23, 1995).

27. The Telemarketing Sales Rule prohibits sellers and
telemarketers from making a false or msleading statenent to
i nduce any person to pay for goods or services. 16 C F. R
§ 310.3(a)(4).

28. The Tel emarketing Sales Rule requires tel emarketers
i n out bound tel ephone calls to disclose pronptly and in a cl ear

and conspi cuous manner the identity of the seller. 16 C. F. R

§ 310. 4(d)(1).
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29. The Telemarketing Sales Rule also requires
tel emarketers i n outbound tel ephone calls to disclose pronptly
and in a clear and conspi cuous manner that the purpose of the
call is to sell goods and services. 16 CF. R § 310.4(d)(2).

30. Pursuant to Section 3(c) of the Tel emarketing Act,
15 U S C 8§ 6102(c), and Section 18(d)(3) of the FTC Act,
15 U.S.C. 8 57a(d)(3), violations of the Tel emarketing Sal es
Rul e constitute unfair or deceptive acts or practices in or
affecting commerce, in violation of Section 5(a) of the
FTC Act, 15 U.S.C. § 45(a).

31. Defendants are “tel emarketers” or “sellers” engaged
in “telemarketing” as those terns are defined in the

Tel emarketing Sales Rule, 16 C.F. R 8 310.2(r), (t) and (u).

COUNT 'V
FALSE AND M SLEADI NG STATEMENTS TO | NDUCE PAYMENT

32. In nunmerous instances, in connection wth the
telemarketing of nondurable office supplies, i ncl udi ng
phot ocopi er toner, defendants have nade false or m sl eading
statenents to i nduce the consuner to pay for photocopier toner,
including, but not limted to, msrepresenting, directly or by
inplication, that (a) defendants are the consunmer’s regular
supplier or are associated wth the manufacturer of the
consuner’ s phot ocopi er; (b) defendants will charge t he consuner

the sane price the consuner has been paying for photocopier
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toner; and (c) the consuner ordered the toner that was shi pped
and/or billed to the consunmer by defendants, thereby violating

16 C.F.R § 310.3(a)(4).

COUNT V
FAI LURE TO DI SCLOSE THE I DENTI TY OF THE SELLER
33. In nunerous instances, in connection wth the
telemarketing of nondurable office supplies, i ncl udi ng
phot ocopi er toner, defendants in "outbound tel ephone calls," as
that termis defined in the Tel emarketing Sales Rule, 16 C. F.R
8 310.2(n), have failed to disclose pronptly and in a clear and

conspi cuous manner their identity to the person receiving the

call, thereby violating 16 CF. R 8§ 310.4(d)(1).

COUNT VI
FAI LURE TO DI SCLOSE SALES PURPOSE OF CALL
34. In nunmerous instances, in connection wth the
telemarketing of nondurable office supplies, i ncl udi ng
phot ocopi er toner, defendants in "outbound tel ephone calls," as
that termis defined in the Tel emarketing Sales Rule, 16 C. F.R
8 310.2(n), have failed to disclose pronptly and in a clear and
conspi cuous nmanner to the person receiving the call that the
purpose of the call was to sell goods, thereby violating

16 C.F.R § 310.4(d)(2).
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CONSUMER | NJURY
35. Consuners throughout the United States have suffered
substantial nonetary loss as a result of defendants’ unl aw ul
acts or practices. In addition, defendants have been unjustly
enriched as a result of their unlawful practices. Absent
injunctive relief by this Court, defendants are likely to

continue to injure consuners and harmthe public interest.

TH S COURT' S PONER TO GRANT RELI EF

36. Section 13(b) of the FTC Act, 15 U S. C. § 53(b),
enpowers the Court to grant injunctive and other equitable
ancillary relief, including consuner redress, disgorgenent, and
restitution, to prevent and renedy viol ati ons of any provision
of |l aw enforced by the Comm ssi on.

37. Section 19 of the FTC Act, 15 US. C 8§ 57b,
aut horizes this Court to award such relief as is necessary to
redress the injury to consuners or others resulting from
defendants’ violations of the Telemarketing Sales Rule,
including the rescission and reformation of contracts and the
refund of noni es.

38. The Court, 1in the exercise of its wequitable
jurisdiction, may award other ancillary relief to renmedy injury

caused by defendants’ viol ations.
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PRAYER FOR RELI EF
Werefore, plaintiff requests that this Court, as
aut hori zed by Sections 13(b) and 19 of the FTC Act, 15 U S. C
88 53(b) and 57b, and Section 6(b) of the Tel emarketing Act,

15 U.S.C. 8 6105(b), and pursuant to its own equitabl e powers:

1. Award pl aintiff such tenporary prelimnary injunctive
and ancillary relief as nmy be necessary to avert the

i kel i hood of consunmer injury during the pendency of this

10
11
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13
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and to preserve the possibility of

Permanently enjoin defendants

Tel emarketing Sal es Rule and the FTC Act,

Award such as the Court

redress consuners resulting

vi ol ati ons of

i ncl udi ng, limted to,

refund of nonies paid, t he di sgorgenent of

effective final

from violating the

as al |l eged herein;

finds necessary to
from defendants’
the Telemarketing Sales Rule and the FTC Act,

rescission of contracts, the

ill-gotten
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4. Award plaintiff the costs of bringing this action, as
wel | as such other and additional equitable relief as the Court

may determine to be just and proper.

DATE: , 2001 Respectful ly subm tted,
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WLLI AM E. KOVACI C
Gener al Counsel

BRI NLEY H. W LLI AMS

BRENDA W DOUBRAVA

GERALD C. ZEMAN

_ Trial Counsel

AéTt” «AY2 Trade Commi ssi on
Eat on Center—Suite 200

1111 Superior Avenue

Cl evel and, Chio 44114-2507
Phone (216) 263-3414

Fax (216) 263-3426

BARBARA Y. K. CHUN (cABar No. 186907)
_ Local Counsel

AéTl” «AY2 Trade Conmi ssi on

10877 Wlshire Blvd. —Suite 700
Los Angeles, California 90024
Phone (310) 824-4312

Fax (310) 824-4380

Attorneys for Plaintiff
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